
                                                          ISAP Meeting Minutes
                                                                 March 1, 2007
                                                            LPD South Precinct
                                                                     11:30 am
Present:
Harriett Dean, EISD/PPS                                                                hdean@eaton.k12.mi.us
Mindy Evans, CACS Headstart                                          mindyevans@cacsheadstart.org
Micki Fuhrman, PPS/EISD                                                      mfuhrman@eaton.k12.mi.us
Latisha Heath, Lansing Teen Court                                        teencourtlansing@cooley.edu
Pat Horton, Planned Parenthood, Calhoun County
Sara Lurie, EISD/PPS                                                                      slurie@eaton.k12.mi.us
Rod MacDonald, Community Member                                              retiredmac@mac.com
Pat McKinley, Cristo Rey Community Center                                   patcrcc@earthlink.net
Ralph Monsma, DHS/DJJ                                                             monsmar@michigan.gov
Amy Moore, Ingham County Health Department                               amoore@ingham.org
Michelle Nicholson, Ingham ISD and 0 to 5 Committee             mnichols@inghamisd.org
Jennie Petrovich, Helpnet/Concern EAP                                          helpeap@voyager.com
Peggy Roberts, Power of We Consortium
Kim Thalison, MidSouth Substance Abuse Commission                kthalisson@mssac.com
Karen Waters, Cristo Rey Community Center                               karencrcc@earthlink.net

I. Call to Order:                                                                                                    11:45 am

Chairperson Rod MacDonald called the meeting to order at 11:45 am and had each
person introduce him or herself.  Rod stated that we would address the first two items
under Old Business in reverse order.

II. Old Business:

a. ACTION ITEM: Community Domain Problem Statements – Prioritizing
Vote

Pat McKinley distributed copies of the Community Domain Workbook.  She explained
that the Workbook was an extension of the information in the Community Discussion
Guide (CDG).  Harriett Dean then distributed copies of the Community Domain Problem
Statements (CDPS).  Rod stated that our charge for today would be to prioritize these
statements.  He said that our committees were now up and running, and we would



concurrently work on prioritizing problems in all of the domains.  Rod said that we now
had Family Domain problems prioritized and would continue to work on Community
Domain problems today.  He asked Pat for the order of the remaining domains and she
replied that we would look at the School Domain in April and the Individual/Peer
Domain in May.  Rod stated that the first page of the CDPS contained problem
statements developed out of the discussion from our last meeting, and the second page
contained Òother issuesÓ that came from the discussion.  The items on the second page
need to be kept in our minds but not necessarily addressed at this time.  Rod said that we
would vote on the statements in the same manner that we had with the Family Domain,
with each ISAP member prioritizing up to three statements.  ISAP members could add
more statements before the vote if they thought that to be necessary.
Discussion:

• Harriett stated that a lot of our discussion was about community norms favoring
underage alcohol use, but that this isnÕt reflected in the problem statements.  She
said that our community seems to accept underage drinking as a Òrite of passage.Ó
Karen Waters said that a lot of our discussion focused on the culture of young
people drinking.  Sara said that questions in the Prevention Needs Assessment
(PNA) Survey would address the whole culture of underage drinking.  Karen said
that a lot of the information in the Workbook addressed the situations where
underage people drink and the Òrites of passageÓ culture, but Pat said there are no
actual statistics about it.

• The discussion shifted to parental attitudes regarding underage drinking.  Jennie
Petrovich stated that consequences of underage drinking seems to mean legal
consequences to parents, and that they donÕt understand social or developmental
consequences.  Karen and Amy Moore both noted that there is currently a lot of
new information about the effects of drinking on the adolescent brain, and that
this is something that the Michigan Coalition to Reduce Underage Drinking
(MCRUD) is addressing.

Decision: An eleventh problem statement was added to the list: Lack of definition of
community norms regarding underage use.

• Rod then read through all 11 problem statements.
• Peggy Roberts asked why reduced price lunches through the school system

constitutes a problem statement.  The correlation between income level and
substance abuse was discussed.  Jennie and Pat both felt that poverty level income
status was a better indicator than reduced price lunches.  Pat stated that looking at
the poverty level where substance abuse occurs requires looking at housing,
businesses, zoning and other issues in each neighborhood.  Rod stated that the
original problem statement about reduced price lunches should be crossed off the
list.

• Pat also noted that when conducting the Alcohol Compliance Check Baseline
project, the rate of compliance in obeying sales-to-minors laws was much higher
in the urban than the rural parts of Ingham County.  This presents an indicator of
adult attitudes toward underage drinking in these areas.

• Rod concluded that there are a lot of data gaps within this domain.
Action: Colored stick-on dots were then distributed to ISAP members present.  They
were instructed to place up to 3 of the dots beside the problem statements, listed on



easel paper that they determined to be the most significant for Ingham County.  Rod
stated that the statements would be turned over to the Community Domain Workgroup,
which would convene very quickly.  The 3 statements chosen were:

1. Over 50% of 12th graders report easy access to alcohol.
2. Over 21-year-old peers and other adults are a more frequent source of

alcohol for youth than retail vendors.
3. Sixty-eight percent of Ingham County youth receive free or reduced

price lunches through the school systems.

b. Mapping/Ingham County Alcohol Compliance Check Violations

Karen stated that Marcus Cheathum from the Ingham County Health Department would
present Power Point slides of non-compliant alcohol retailers and related factors in
Ingham County. The slides were comprised of risk and protective factors in one area of
Ingham County, the north side of Lansing, as well as the risk factor of vendors in
violation of sales-to-minors laws.  Marcus stated that the slides spanned about 6 months
of data.  The 8 slides highlighted:

• An asset map of North Lansing from 2005. (highlighting schools,
churches, the North Precinct and Cristo Rey Community Center)

• A 2006 signage survey of North Lansing with alcohol and tobacco signs
plotted.

• Tobacco sales in North Lansing from 2005.
• Alcohol sales in North Lansing from 2005.
• Assaults in North Lansing from 2006. (including domestic assaults)
(All of the above slides also highlighted percent in poverty tracts.)
• Controlled substance violations by overall rate in North Lansing from

2006.
• Selling to minors by substance (alcohol) violation rate in North Lansing,

and across Ingham County, from the 2006 Alcohol Compliance Check
Baseline Project

• A correlation between alcohol sales and assaults graph, with assaults per
100,000 and liquor licensees per 100,000 plotted.

Karen distributed copies of Ingham County Alcohol Retailers in Violation of Sales to
Minors Laws Per ISAP Alcohol Compliance Check Project FY 2005/2006, which listed
the names of the 47 non-compliant alcohol vendors highlighted on slide 7.  Discussion
again focused on geographical areas of Ingham County where retail access to alcohol by
underage people seemed to be most common.  Karen noted that a wide variety of alcohol
retailers; bars, restaurants, Mom and Pop stores, and major chain stores, had all been in
violation. Marcus pointed out that switching back and forth from the slides with alcohol
sales plotted and the slide with assaults plotted indicated that these things were happening
in approximately the same areas.  The correlation between alcohol sales and assaults is in
fact 85%.  Marcus also stated that Officer Craig Anderson, Senior Crime Analyst from
the Lansing Police Department has a lot of substance-related crime data that he would be
willing to share.

c. Drug Free Communities grant discussion



Sara distributed copies of 2007 Drug Free Communities Grant Vital Information.  She
stated that this was a detailed list of eligibility requirements for the grant.  Sara noted that
we have representation from all 12 sectors listed with the exception of youth and
business.
Discussion:

• Micki Fuhrman stated that she was hoping to recruit a youth representative
from Mason and that a businessperson from MeijerÕs attended one ISAP
meeting.

Decision:
As the person from MeijerÕs had only attended one ISAP meeting, the Coalition decided
that JennieÕs status as a Helnet/Concern EAP employee would qualify her as our
businessperson.

• Sara stated that environmental strategies are strongly encouraged, but not
required, in applying for this grant.

• Peggy stated that, as developing a county-wide Media Campaign focused
on reducing underage drinking is a suggested environmental strategy for
the grant, we should consider contacting someone from the editorial board
of the Lansing State Journal to join the Coalition.

• Sara noted that a 100% match of support from other non-federal sources is
required for this grant, which includes all ISAP members.

• Sara also noted that we can add support to current county-wide initiatives
that are already in our Plan, such as the Safe Prom Initiative, and the
Alcohol Awareness poster contest and mall event, as well as initiatives
like Parents who Host Lose the Most.

• Pat stated that evaluation in this grant will require that we be able to
demonstrate evidence of change, such as change in statistics from the
Prevention Needs Assessment Survey.  This will have to be written into
the grant proposal.  Sara suggested that we indicate that the statistics in
our Community Domain problem statements will change.

• Amy suggested that we use our last problem statement for an outreach
plan within the proposal, stating that we would use PNA Survey data to
work with Ingham County schools.  Sara asked Kim Thalison if we would
then be eligible for block grant funds from MidSouth Substance Abuse
Commission, which Kim affirmed.

• Sara stated that Pat, Karen, Harriett and Micki will be writing the grant
proposal.  She said that a lot of our attachments such as meeting minutes
and bylaws will have to be pulled together.  Rod added that other ISAP
members could add to the narrative if they so desired.

• Sara stated that staffing for the grant will have to be decided before our
next meeting, as the due date for the proposal is April 17, 2007.  Amy
recommended that staff members from EISD/PPS and Cristo Rey
Community Center staff positions in the grant proposal.  Harriett stated
that a recommendation could be made for this and then ISAP members
could vote on it by proxy via email.



• Sara stated that Capital Area United Way and Cristo Rey Community
Center (CRCC) had both volunteered to be the fiduciary for the grant.  She
added that the fiduciary accepts the funds for the proposal and disburses
them, and that all financial pieces are web-based for this grant.

Decision:
Amy moved that CRCC be recommended as fiduciary for the Drug Free Communities
grant proposal.  The vote for the recommendation was unanimously passed.

III. New Business:

        a. Discussion: contacting Governor regarding liquor tax increase, beer tax.

Sara distributed copies of Alcohol Policies Fact Sheet on Beer Consumption and Taxes
from the Center for Science in the Public Interest, and copies of a February 21, 2007
article in the Lansing City Pulse written by Dr. Dean Sienko.  The article is entitled
Liquor Tax Hike Helps, but it Could Go Even Higher.  Sara stated that these two
handouts support the information Pat had included in the Community Discussion Guide
and Community Domain Workbook, stating that Taxes on Alcohol Affect Costs and
Affordability.  Lower prices on alcohol are associated with increased levels and
frequency of drinking, particularly among underage persons.

Decision:
It was unanimously voted that ISAP will contact the Governor in support of a liquor and
beer tax increase.

b. Committee Reports:

Data Workgroup and Media Marketing Committee Reports were tabled in the interest of
time.

IV. MidSouth Announcements:

Kim stated that the 2006/2007 PNA Survey data would be presented to interested parties
on April 19, 2007.

V. Other Announcements

a. Micki distributed copies of the April is Alcohol Awareness Month Poster Contest
flyer.  Community Partners, schools and after school programs are invited to take part in
the contest from March 1 to March 26, 2007.  Youth from grades 1 through 12 are
eligible to enter.  All poster finalists will be displayed at the Lansing City Hall.  The
theme of the contest is End Underage Drinking: A Call to Action.

b. Micki made an announcement for Rory Hopkemier.  The training on Human
Trafficking in Ingham County that she had previously announced is scheduled for April
19, 2007.



VI. Special Presentation at 1:30 pm.  The ISAP Substance Abuse in the Capital
Area Power Point: Introduction and Use

Rod introduced Amanda Menzies from Public Sector Consultants.  Amanda put this
Power Point presentation together, using the most compelling data from the Substance
Abuse in the Capital Area Report.  All ISAP members present were invited to stay and
view the presentation.  Slides included:

• Alcohol and Tobacco Use Among Adults
• Treatment Admissions by Primary Drug
• Lifetime Use Among Youth
• Current Use Among Youth
• Binge Drinking Among Youth
• Perception of ParentsÕ Attitudes Toward Underage Drinking
• Perception of ParentsÕ Attitudes Toward Smoking by Youth
• Where Youth Get Alcohol
• Where Youth Get Cigarettes
• Alcohol-Related Death
• Smoking During Pregnancy
• Second Hand Smoke
• Fatal Motor Vehicle Crashes
• Arrest Rates For Driving Under The Influence, Adults
• Arrest Rates For Driving Under The Influence, Juveniles
• Rate of Alcohol-Related Arrests, Juveniles
• Rate Of Drug-Related Arrests, Adults
• Rate Of Drug-Related Arrests, Juveniles
• Arrests by Type of Drug in the Capital Area
• Methamphetamine Lab Seizures
• Child Abuse and Domestic Violence
• Financial Costs

The Power PointÕs last 3 slides describe ISAP.

Next Meeting: April 12, 2007

VII. Adjourn:                                                                                                          1:30 pm

        Adjournment of Special Presentation:                                                         2:45 pm

 


